Notes to the Financial Statements
B A5 R MR

1. Group reorganisation, application of merger
accounting and general information
Group reorganisation

Lee Kee Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated

in the Cayman Islands on 11th November 2005 as an exempted

company with limited liability under the Companies Law (2004

Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

The Company and the subsidiaries now comprising the Group

underwent the following reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) in

preparation for the initial public offering of the shares of the

Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”):

@)

On 21st August 2006, each of Lee Kee Metal Company
(BVI) Limited, Lee Sing Materials Company (BVI) Limited,
Lee Fung Metal Company (BVI) Limited, Lee Tai Precious
Metal Company (BVI) Limited and Toba Company (BVI)
Limited (collectively the “BVI Subsidiaries”) allotted and
issued one share of HK$1.00 to Lee Kee Group Limited
(“Lee Kee Group”), credited as fully paid, in consideration
of the acquisition of the entire share capital of each of
Lee Kee Metal Company Limited, Lee Sing Materials
Company Limited, Lee Fung Metal Company Limited, Lee
Tai Precious Metal Company Limited and Toba Company
Limited (collectively the “Hong Kong Subsidiaries”),
respectively from Lee Kee Group. After the reorganisation,
the BVI Subsidiaries, which were all wholly and directly
held by Lee Kee Group, became intermediate holding
companies of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries.
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Group reorganisation, application of merger
accounting and general information (Continued)
Group reorganisation (Continued)

(i) On 11th September 2006, Lee Kee Group (BVI) Limited
(“Lee Kee Group (BVI)"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a reorganisation agreement
with Mr Chan Pak Chung and Lee Kee Group, whereby
Lee Kee Group allotted and issued 1,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$1.00 each to Lee Kee Group (BVI) for cash
at par. Mr Chan Pak Chung also consented to convert
the 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each of Lee
Kee Group held by him into 10,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in consideration of the
allotment and issue to the Company of 1 new ordinary
share of HK$1.00 of Lee Kee Group (BVI) at
HK$640,630,602 pursuant to a deed of gift entered into
between Mr Chan Pak Chung and the Company. On 12th
September 2006, the 10,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares converted were repurchased by Lee Kee Group at
par from Mr Chan Pak Chung.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries as set out in
note 30 to the financial statements on 11th September 2006.

Application of merger accounting

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
using the principles of merger accounting, as prescribed in Hong
Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
position, results and cash flows of the companies comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in existence
since 1st January 2005, or since their respective dates of
incorporation / establishment. Companies acquired from (or
disposed of to) a third party during the period were included in
(excluded from) the consolidated financial statements of the
Group from the date of that acquisition (disposal).
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Group reorganisation, application of merger 1. REEH -FEREHEFER—BREHR
accounting and general information (Continued) (&)
Application of merger accounting (Continued) FER&HETZ (f‘%)
The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from the RRAEEEBRALRAESAMREES
common control combination on the consolidated balance MR BRI T -
sheets.
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2006: RZZEERNF+_A=+—HANKREEERA
fExk:
The Company
and Lee Kee
Lee Kee Group
Group (BVI) and its Adjustment
AATR subsidiaries (Note)
Lee Kee FlitEER %  Consolidated
Group (BVI) HKBAT (BifsE) &ae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFERT TERT THET THET
Investment in Lee Kee Group RAREBRIRE 640,632 - (640,632) —
Other assets — net HitnEE—FE 683,352 631,012 - 1,314,364
Net assets BEFE 1,323,984 631,012 (640,632) 1,314,364
Share capital (&N 83,000 1 (1) 83,000
Share premium & 155 (E 496,574 - - 496,574
Contributed surplus B A% 640,631 - (640,631) -
Other reserves Hith & 103,779 631,011 - 734,790
1,323,984 631,012 (640,632) 1,314,364
Note: The above adjustment represents adjustment to eliminate the BisE: iU ERE@lRN ST E+_-8

share capital of Lee Kee Group as at 31st December 2006 against
the investment cost of Lee Kee Group in the financial statements
of Lee Kee Group (BVI).
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Group reorganisation, application of merger
accounting and general information (Continued)
Application of merger accounting (Continued)
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2005:
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fEx:
The Company

and Lee Kee

Lee Kee Group

Group (BVI) and its

/NG subsidiaries
Lee Kee FUERESESE Adjustment Consolidated
Group (BVI) HI B AR HE o)
FHET FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets BEFE (22) 351,243 = 351,221
Share capital %N - 10,000 (10,000) =
Other reserves Hib (22) 341,243 10,000 351,221
(22) 351,243 - 351,221

No other significant adjustments were made to the net assets
and net profit or loss of any entities as a result of the common
control combination to achieve consistency of accounting
policies.

General information
The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
4th October 2006.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activity of the Group is trading of zinc, zinc alloy,
nickel, nickel-related products, aluminium, aluminium alloy and
other electroplating chemical products in Hong Kong.
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Group reorganisation, application of merger
accounting and general information (Continued)
General information (Continued)

The address of the Company'’s registered office is P.O. Box 309
G.T, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, Cayman Islands.

These financial statements are presented in units of Hong Kong
dollars (“HK dollars”) and have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 27th March 2007.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements which are in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(which include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"))
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to the two years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards and interpretations to existing standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been published that are mandatory for the
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1st May 2006
or later periods that the Group has not early adopted:

. HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and the
complementary Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2007).
HKFRS 7 and the Amendment to HKAS 1 introduce new
disclosures relating to financial instruments which include
sensitivity analysis to market risk and capital disclosures.
These standard and amendment do not have any
significant impact on the classification and valuation of
the Group’s financial instruments.

. HKFRS 8, Operating Segment: (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2009). HKFRS 8
supersedes HKAS 14, Segment Reporting, under which
segments were identified and reported on risk and return
analysis. Items were reported on the accounting policies
used for external reporting. Under HKFRS 8, segments
are components of an entity regularly reviewed by an
entity’s chief operating decision-maker. Items are reported
based on the internal reporting. This standard does not
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

. HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, Scope of HKFRS 2 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st May 2006). HK(IFRIC)-
Int 8 requires consideration of transactions involving the
issuance of equity instruments — where the identifiable
consideration received is less than the fair value of the
equity instruments issued — to establish whether or not
they fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. The Group will
apply HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 from 1st January 2007, but it is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.

Lee Kee Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st November 2006). HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 prohibits the
impairment losses recognised in an interim period on
goodwill, investments in equity instruments and
investments in financial assets carried at cost to be
reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. The Group
will apply HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 from 1st January 2007, but it
is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Merger accounting for common control combination
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised
in consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where there is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date
or when they first came under common control, whichever
is shorter.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Merger accounting for common control combination

(Continued)

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining

entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the
previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation
to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(c) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries and a

jointly controlled entity made up to 31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of

more than one half of the voting rights.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Lee Kee Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Consolidation (Continued)

0]

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Apart from the Reorganisation referred to in note 1
above which has been accounted for under the
merger basis of accounting as detailed in note 2(b),
the purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(c) Consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Jointly controlled entity

A Jointly controlled entity is a joint venture whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity. The Group’s interests in a
jointly controlled entity are accounted for by
proportionate consolidation. The Group combines
its share of the jointly controlled entity’s individual
income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash
flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in
the Group’s financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it is
attributable to the other venturer. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
jointly controlled entity that result from the Group’s
purchase of assets from the jointly controlled entity
until it resells the assets to an independent party.
However, a loss on the transaction is recognised
immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current assets,
or an impairment loss.

(d) Foreign currency translation

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates (‘the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Lee Kee Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006

2.

EXEHBUREE (&)

(0 &&kKRE (&)

(i)

HEEHEE
ARZESERIEAEEEE BT
BRAECENSTEELE R
EEARE T HEZES) 28 EM
— BT EEEESHEETE
R A BN KRS ERE M
R TR LI A BE AR - N E A
HPEAE SR 5] B 8 A0 8 Bl A
MER EEMBEARRDRE
IR AR B B 75 33k AR SR L0
HERIETAM-AEEREZE
CEHESERREME ETE
E R BB R BB A MR - NS
G R AN S B A LR R R AR R
ANBEMEENRGLXRESE
BAEE BIEFZEEEHETSE=
AT EERRXSHBEEM
ZEBENEABRARBEEN]
FRFER L AHRBESE X
ZEE R IR R

(d) ShEERE

(i)

(ii)

DR R 23K HE

AEEETSERREAMEE
MIEE AR EREENETEL
EREMERNER ([ThEE
) A E-MBERABTES)
BT ARRINZSI RIEER-

HNEZHERGERNERRE
RUEEB -AHERZEE R
REBEXRELIIMNESENE
BEENAEMELAEN Kat
NEiE s R R



2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

2.

EXEHBUREE (&)

(d) SME]E (&)

(i)

£EH 7]

WEEEESIREETRNMAAE
SEER (P 2ABERIRGEHK
BRNER )E’J%iz&ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂhz

AT EBRERIIRE

- ENERNEEAGBERAN
BERAEBRZEE B
MEXRHKE

- BHRERANBAREX
BRYPERBE (BRIFLF
ERIW AR S HEE
R RFAFEZAEHE:
FEUIERT WA B &R
SHBZEXRRE) K

- MBARBEEZENZREE
RSB EKIAE -

FEirARER BERINEEMNIR
BEE URMREEERAMIEE
ERZEREH RN ER T AR
EEZERZBIARRER S
EHSHEBHBINERR ZE
EREZBERRRAERASLE
BEHN—E -

R g EEMELENEEK
ATFEABREGIINERBEER
BERE WREmERKE.

MRERABRAR —ZTAFER

71



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EBi#% R & K=

72

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line basis or reducing balance
basis to allocate cost less estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are

as follows:

Buildings 2% straight-line
Leasehold improvements 20% reducing balance
Motor vehicles 30% reducing balance
Machinery 30% reducing balance

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 20% reducing balance

Computer system 20% reducing balance

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other gains — net, in the income
statement.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the Group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of
the definition of investment property is met. The operating
lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. The fair value of investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from
current leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement as part of the other gains — net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property is
classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at
cost until construction or development is complete, at
which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted
for as investment property.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of investment in a subsidiary and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Investments in financial derivatives

Investments in financial derivatives are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the

income statement.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement within administrative expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
administrative expenses in the income statement.

Assets held for sale and liabilities associated with
assets held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as assets held for sale and
liabilities associated with assets held for sale and stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair values less costs
to sell if their carrying amounts are recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. The carrying amounts of the reclassified assets and
liabilities are determined based on the same applicable
accounting policies prior to the reclassification, except for
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment. No
amortisation and depreciation have been provided
subsequent to the reclassification.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(m)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(n) Employee benefits

0)

(ii)

Pension obligation

The Group participates in a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees
pursuant to the Mandatory Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on a minimum statutory contribution
requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant
aggregate income. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred.

The employees of a subsidiary of the Group’s jointly
controlled entity which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiary of the Group’s jointly controlled entity
is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are expensed in the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of the bonus
plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when they are settled.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

Lee Kee Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006

2.

EXEHBUREE (&)

(n) ESEH (&)

(i)

(iv)

{EALETE]

TEALFHBINERT AR A IINERE
RERGMENREELRBE
ESRHEE BT WAL SIS (AT I o
RBBE A RN B EREK
Rt @A RER IR FRETE
AT XN EETE-

KR 4548

AN S B R A P I DA RS A 22 U Y JA
B dn XA RIBRT 8- SRR AR
REmMESNEEREAFET
ER AR -NEBHAHENE
B2 EMRLEBRENDTE
MEE & TNEREFETSE
BT (B g R EIR R
B MR E-FMSRBIRMTAAN
T R BB B RERA-
NEEER BERETEH RS
BREN G EE  XRRERA
HERER] R HE R E (I
B) BpiEssErTAaRmAR

BB TR PR FRIA
(EBREMEZ AR ZA)
BE AR (HME) KAt B o



2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease periods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding
and the interest rates applicable.

Management fee and commission income are recognised
when services are rendered.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(q) Leases

(r)

(s)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are charged to the income statement
in the years in which they are incurred.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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2.

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those segments operating in other
economic environments.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

Financial risk management

(a)

Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group purchases almost all of its products from
overseas suppliers. Payments are primarily made in
United States dollars (“US dollars”). Sales of the
Group are primarily denominated in US dollars and
HK dollars. The Group does not consider there is a
high exchange risk between HK dollars and US
dollars.

(i) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks as well
as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.
Deposits are placed in banks with appropriate credit
ratings. For credit exposures to customers, the Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It
has policies in place to ensure that credit sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to new customers or to those without
an appropriate credit history are traded on letter of
credit, cash on delivery or delivery against payment.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines
available.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets the Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group aims to minimise long term
bank borrowings which exposes the Group to high
interest rate risk. The floating rate short term bank
borrowings of the Group, which have maturities of
less than 120 days, do not expose the Group to high
interest rate risk owing to their short maturities.

(b) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

including bank balances and cash, trade and other

receivables; and financial liabilities including trade and

other payables, and short term bank borrowings

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

below.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. The accounting
estimates and assumptions that have a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4. EESHEERHAR &)
(Continued)
(a) Net realisable value of inventories (a) HFEMTERFHE
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the FEMIZEFERENABESKRBIE
ordinary course of business, less estimated direct selling FEEETEE R AT EER -4
expenses. These estimates are based on current market EET TR B E R O B E HERE
conditions and historical experience of selling goods of a mEI A BR T AE - Al E] AR R TR
similar nature. It could change as a result of changes in MRS BREGREE BRIEHAT
market conditions. Management reassesses the hZE M
estimations at each balance sheet date.
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEWEREEE
Management determines the provision for impairment of EREEMRERERREFIREE IR
trade receivables. This estimate is based on the credit A REREFPHEERERERTR
history of its customers and current market conditions. It i {E - 3 AT 88 %5 5 B B IS AR R
could change as a result of change in the financial mMERES - EEEHNEEAEHE
positions of customers. Management reassesses the [FEeyi=
provision at each balance sheet date.
5. Revenue and other income 5. WrmRHMBUA
The Group is principally engaged in trading of zinc, zinc alloy, REBETEXEBANBHERN HEe 8
nickel, nickel-related products, aluminium, aluminium alloy and EEED B meekEMEEIIER:
other electroplating chemical products in Hong Kong which BAEBHEREENERE SER®NN0% - M
accounts for more than 90 percent of the Group’s revenue and REEBIO%WBEEHERS Bt REIZ
trading results and more than 90 percent of the Group's total EBRIE D EETON U T ARFERNHER
assets are in Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis by business BlaE (TRERAEE 2 255) REMIK
and geographical segments has been prepared. Revenue, which A
also represents the Group’s turnover, and other income
recognised during the year are as follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHETT
Revenue &
Sales of goods HmiHE 5,522,422 3,143,009
Other income HAb YA
Interest income FEMA 16,278 558
Gross rental income from investment REYENBSEBA
properties 691 2,103
Management fee, net of BB (MRTEHD)
withholding tax 70 260
Commission income AelA - 20
Others Efth 497 630
17,536 3,571
MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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Expenses by nature 6. RMESEMRX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling DIASHERA D8 M HER S A RITHFA
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEMA AT
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Auditors’ remuneration ZHMME 1,125 500
Depreciation nE 3,129 1,939
Amortisation of leasehold land FAE T b 5N 128 381
Staff costs (note 9) ST (Kt5E9) 33,954 20,081
Operating lease rental for land T RAEFE
and buildings wEHERe 3,414 3,045
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 4,979,678 2,854,108
Outgoings in respect of investment FAEMESIEL T
properties 17 81
Impairment provision for doubtful debts  RERBREREE 2,062 -
Other receivable written off H {th UK IR L 88 = 33
Other gains - net 7. Hibyhzs— R\
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Fair value gains on investment BEMENDFEWES
properties, including those BRENDEREEE
reclassified to assets held for sale HEZEENREME 3,800 9,840
Losses on metal future trading contracts & BHEE =S HNERE (786) (595)
Gains on disposal of property, plant HEWE BFE REE
and equipment oG 266 204
Net exchange gain EH W F 5 6,015 3,024
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries L EH B A R R ESE
(notes 23 and 32(c)) (FzE23%32(c)) (82) =
Excess of the Group's interest REBERLEZEFEE
in the net fair value of the AR EEFRER
identifiable net assets of the jointly AEFER G ER
controlled entity over cost of BB K 7R B D
acquisition (note 32(b)) (MF5E32(b) 1,084 =
10,297 12,473
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8.

Finance costs 8. REmMAK
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET FiET
Interest on RUATIE B M7 &
Bank overdrafts BITEX 1 3
Loans against trust receipts fErElIEE R 11,706 7,903
11,707 7,906
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 9. BETRA (BETEHL)
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHIT
Wages, salaries and allowances T& e k=ERL 28,593 19,561
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKE PA—FE 5K 613 520
Share-based payment LARR 5 2 < 5/ 18 4,748 =
33,954 20,081
FRERBRAT —ZBAEER
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10. Directors’ and senior management's 10. EERSREEASNE
emoluments
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Salaries Share-
and other based
allowances payment
Name of directors Fees &R  Bonuses  Pension PARE 13 Total
EEfE e  HiEe fedl Be XHRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT TR TR TR
2006 —EERE
Mr Chan Pak Chung RiasRtE - 1,809 880 12 1,017 3,718
Ms Chan Yuen Shan, Clara 530k - 992 1,700 12 59 3,298
Ms Ma Siu Tao BXRMzt - 758 880 12 835 2,485
Mr Ng Tze For* R R AE - 594 150 6 42 792
Mr William Tasman Wise* William Tasman
Wise St 4 * 45 - - - - 45
Mr Chung Wai Kwok, Jimmy* ERBISL A 45 - - - - 45
Mr Yan Cheuk Yam* BER A 45 - - - - 45
Mr Leung Kwok Keung* RERL 45 - - - - 45
180 4,153 3,610 42 2,488 10,473
2005 —TTRE
Mr Chan Pak Chung RiaREE - 865 72 12 - 949
Ms Chan Yuen Shan, Clara MR <+ - 420 1,035 12 = 1,467
Ms Ma Siu Tao BRMztL - 259 1,122 12 - 1,393
- 1,544 2,229 36 - 3,809

- Joined in 2006.

#: Joined in 2006 and resigned as an independent non-
executive director effective on 28th February 2007.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2005: Nil). No payment for joining the
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or
payable to any directors during the year (2005: Nil).
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10. Directors’ and senior management’s 10. EEREREENENE (©)
emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HEEREIHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FNAEEREESFALTEE=%
in the Group during the year include three (2005: three) (ZEZRF - =ZR)EENFHER L
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis X E2F|H DTN RE - F AN A&
presented above. The emoluments payable to the BEMA LTz PESBRE (ZETHF:
remaining two (2005: two) of the five highest paid M) ATHMEnT:

individuals during the year are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FHETT
Salaries and other allowances e R EHAERL 1,235 1,712
Bonuses TEAL 1,366 260
Pension RBIke 24 24
Share-based payment VARR 17 3 1~ 5738 806 -
3,431 1,996

The emoluments payable to these individuals during the FRERMNZEALTHOMEN FIATHEN:

year fell within the following emolument bands:

Number of individuals

AR
2006 2005
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7.2 1,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001#7C 22,500,000 7T 1 =
2 2
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11. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%

(2005: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on profits arising from operations in Mainland China
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the Mainland China.

11. FifeBX
EBFISRIR B E R 5t FE R BR T AR
L17.5% (ZZTRF:17.5%) st E&E R
B R B K BE 375 2 i R M B T8 B R P B K B
R R B E N AT B R RS TRt E

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Current income tax BIERFT1S A1
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBFEH 80,957 40,962
— Mainland China enterprise income tax — B ZEFEH 459 -
Deferred income tax relating to EREENEER
the origination and reversal of OB EENRIER
temporary differences, including for BREMSERERF
the disposal group reclassified to EHECEERBNARE
liabilities associated with assets B S R E
held for sale 1,043 1,384
Overprovision in prior year L EERREEE (28) (186)
Income tax expense FrisfiAx 82,431 42,160

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the income tax

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

REME LR PAEHADE RN H B R EREFE
MEMIR R ENE RN ZRA

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FAT

Profit before income tax R BT 1S B ) 470,994 244,540
Calculated at an income tax rate BREEE17.5%

of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) (ZETRF:175%)tE 82,424 42,795
Effect of different tax rates in HaBERTRF =X

other country 0} (151) =

Income not subject to income tax BIEBMFTIS AW A (3,002) (567)

Expenses not deductible for TR HIBR PRS T

income tax purpose K 3,188 118

Overprovision in prior year L EERREEE (28) (186)

Income tax expense FriSfiF sz 82,431 42,160
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12. Earnings per share 12. BEREF

(a) Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares for 2005 is based on the assumption that the
Reorganisation had been completed on 1st January 2005.

e %S
FRERBFTRA R B RERE AR
s MR AF N 21T 5 WA I
B E — T RFERRINEF
HEBEEHER-_TTHF—A—B
TRt E e

2006 2005
Profit attributable to equity holders A2 RIRERE B A FE(REF
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 388,563 202,380
Weighted average number of BT E BN T8
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (LATFEH) 654,767 600,000
Basic earnings per share BRREARZA]
(Hong Kong cents per share) (AR ANLET) 59.34 33.73

MRERERRE —ZSAFFR
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12. Earnings per share (Continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive
potential ordinary share which is the share options granted
to the directors of the Company and the employees of
the Group under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. For
the share options, a calculation is made in order to
determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual
market share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

12. Bik&EF (@)

(b)

o3

BRESE AT N E T A SRRERM
BREEIERENETRRARRESR
TEBROMNETFIOE - ARAREIT—
BABEHERRN SR MREE
RAFBE A B EA SR T ARRE
ERAEEEENBERE RBERER
5 REE RN TE (BRAR RS
FHFEDBEE) BANRNER B
RIBOEHBRERM SN RBEENE
WEEELFE Dl EREHNRG
W H BERTEBAEM D HITHRD
HEETHR

2006

Profit attributable to equity holders of RNAFIRAER A ARMERER

the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) 388,563
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT E RN TS

in issue ("000) (LAFEH) 654,767
Adjustments for share options ('000) SRR (R A F B A TF&T) 5,562
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SAESREERNNERR

for diluted earnings per share ('000) g (A5 660,329
Diluted earnings per share TS 2R

(Hong Kong cents per share) (AR ENLET) 58.84

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding in 2005, the diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 31st December 2005 is the same as the
basic earnings per share of HK33.73 cents.

Lee Kee Holdings Limited Annual Report 2006

BF|233.73BlE R -



13.

14.

Profit attributable to equity holders

Profit attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$99,053,000 (For the period from 11th November 2005
(date of incorporation) to 31st December 2005: loss of
HK$14,000).

13. BRERHAESLGT
RAR BB RE 2 RIERE ABERETL
799,053,000 T (BRABIKZ B ST RF
+—A+—RAE=ZTTRF+=-_A=1+—H
HARE : 51814,000787T) ©

Dividends 14. &R
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHTT

Dividend declared to the then shareholder RIE R —REH B2 RIMREE IR
of a subsidiary (note (a)) iR 8 (FiaE(a)) - 85,000

Proposed special dividend of HK10 cents  BERAF RIS 2 8 AR 107810
per ordinary share (note (b)) (ME(b)) 83,000 =

Proposed final dividend of HK1.93 cents  ##& A& B S 5 A% L @A 1. 93781

per ordinary share (note (c)) UEE)) 16,019 =
99,019 85,000

Notes: B & -

(@)  Adividend of HK$85,000,000 was declared by Lee Kee Group, a
subsidiary of the Company, to its then shareholder prior to the
Reorganisation.

(b) A special dividend in respect of 2006 of HK10 cents per share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$83,000,000 is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting on 31st May 2007. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

(©) A final dividend in respect of 2006 of HK1.93 cents per share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$16,019,000 is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting on 31st May 2007. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

(a) AREMB R EFCEBENE AR R
#) A% 3R & K A% 5.85,000,000/8 7T °

b) MR-ZEZLFRA=T—BRTHRRBE
AE ELBRER _ETRNETREIREE
A& 107810 - & A% 283,000,000/ I ° BF 75 5
R R ZEEMNIRE

(0 RIZEZLFRA=+—HBTHREREA
FRELBREBER T XRNFEIRAH
iR S8 1.938 1l & /% 516,019,000/
TCo MR A ERIRZE RS -

MNRBEREBRAT —ZTAEER
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15. Investment properties 15. EYE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1st January wn—A—H - 36,980
Fair value gains NFEWR - 9,840
Reclassified to assets held for sale BENOBABEELHECEE
(note 23) (MF5E23) - (46,820)
At 31st December ®+=RA=+—~H - -
The Group's interests in investment properties, including those REBRKREYE (BER_ZETHF+=A
reclassified to assets held for sale as at 31st December 2005 =St+—BRENOEAREEHEZEENR
(note 23), at their carrying values are analysed as follows: BEWE) (WiF23) MERZEREES TN
™
HK$'000
FHTT
In Hong Kong, held on: REE A THFHNEERSF:
Lease of over 50 years HBIBS0FHEE 38,020
Leases of between 10 and 50 years NF10FE50FEMHAE 8,800
46,820
Investment properties as at 31st December 2005 were revalued R-ZZEERF+-_A=+—BNREDEH
by Chesterton Petty Limited, independent, professionally BY EXMEEMEBAETTERARET
qualified valuers. Valuations were based on current prices in Bl FJ A DENERMSHTE-

an active market.
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16. Leasehold land

HELH

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

TFHET FHETT

At 1st January n—HA—H 5,156 16,218

Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity Yo — R H E a2

(note 32(b)) (M5E32(b)) 492 -

Amortisation B 5 (128) (381)
Reclassification to assets held for sale BNOBRREELE 2 EE

(note 23) (PfFaE23) - (10,681)

Exchange difference ERER 12 -

At 31st December R+=—RA=+—8H 5,532 5,156

The Group’s interests in leasehold land, including those
reclassified to assets held for sale at 31st December 2005 (note
23), represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

AEERBELH (BER-_ZTRE+ A
=+t BREHSBARAEZLEEENE
B (FIRE23) ) Motk ATRNELBER
B HEEREFESTT

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT

Held on leases of between NF10FE50FFH

10 and 50 years WiE

In Hong Kong REE 5,032 15,837
Outside Hong Kong AV 500 -
5,532 15,837

At 31st December 2005, certain leasehold land with an
aggregate net book value of HK$5,156,000 was pledged as
security for the Group’s banking facilities. The security was
released in 2006.

R-ZEZERF+_A=+—H HFTERMF
{E/55,156,000/8 LA & L1 B 4K 3H - (E
RRITAAEERBEENER TR
RZTTNFRERe

MEEZERERAE —STAFFR
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17. Property, plant and equipment

17. % BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- and office
ments Motor equipment  Computer
Buildings  HEY¥  vehicdes Machinery HH KER system Total
i &3 3 RE WE  WAERE  SHR4 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Cost %3
At 1st January 2006 RZBZ5—-F—H 3,400 2,917 9,186 1,060 2,311 3,599 22,473
Additions NE 32 284 5,099 13 45 552 6,025
Acquisition of a jointly controlled WE—FIERZHER
entity (note 32(b)) (ff&£32(0)) 1,688 - 8 1,594 47 - 3,337
Disposals e - - (1,601) - - - (1,601)
Exchange difference ERZEZE 12 - 1 35 1 - 49
At 31st December 2006 R-FERE
+=R=+-H 5132 3,201 12,693 2,702 2,404 4,151 30,283
Accumulated depreciation RitiE
At 1st January 2006 RZBZ5—-F—H 372 2,131 6,868 1,022 1,649 2,136 14,178
Charge for the year FRHE 82 220 2,179 95 127 426 3,129
Disposals HE - - (1.418) - - = (1,418)
Exchange difference ERZEE - - 1 2 - - 3
At 31st December 2006 REBERE
+=R=+-H 454 2,351 7,630 1,119 1,776 2,562 15,892
Net book value at R-FERE
31st December 2006 +=R=+-H
HRE$E 4,678 850 5,063 1,583 628 1,589 14,391
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17. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 17. Y% -BERRE (&)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- and office
ments Motor equipment  Computer
Buldings ~ MEWE vehicles ~ Machinery EfvEER system Total
BT 30 it e BOERE S &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Cost KA
At 1st January 2005 R=ZZRE-F-AH 7,465 2,606 8,801 1,060 2,114 3,248 25,294
Additions RE - 401 1,141 = 210 351 2,103
Disposals HE - - (756) - (13) = (769)
Reclassified to assets held BNARAREIFLEL
for sale (note 23) B (M323) (4,065) (90) = = = - (4,155)
At 31st December 2005 RZEZn%¥
—“A=t+-H 3,400 2,917 9,186 1,060 2,311 3,599 22,473
Accumulated depreciation 25tihe
At 1st January 2005 R-ZZRE-F-H 996 1,950 6,399 1,005 1,523 1,742 13,615
Charge for the year FANE 145 217 1,029 17 137 394 1,939
Disposals e = = (560) = (1) = (571)
Reclassified to assets held BNARAREIFLEL
for sale (note 23) EE (F1i23) (769) (36) = = = = (805)
At 31st December 2005 RZEZn%¥
“A=+-A 372 2,131 6,868 1,022 1,649 2,136 14,178
Net book value at RZZZRF
31st December 2005 +=ZRA=+-AR
MEEFE 3,028 786 2,318 38 662 1,463 8,295
All the Group's buildings are situated on the Group’s leasehold REBEMBEFHUNAEENEE Lt -
land. At 31st December 2005, certain buildings with an RZZBZRF+_A=+—H STHKEF
aggregate net book value of HK$3,028,000 were pledged as 553,028,000 TTHIEFERIEI - 1EAIR
security for the Group’s banking facilities. The security was TRAAEEREFEENER - BER
released in 2006. RN FRNRERe
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18. Inventories 18. #E&

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Raw materials, at cost B R Bk A 12,551 =
Finished goods, at cost BURY SR IR 746,519 351,270
759,070 351,270

19. Trade and other receivables 19. FEMER R H it EKRIE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Trade receivables, net of provision MR 2 U E R 191,308 127,086
Prepayments to suppliers Mt FE R 2 R TE KR 39,009 55,512
Deposits e 9,976 2,683
Other receivables H fth U R IE 4,353 2,764
244,646 188,045
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19. BREREHMEKRIE (@)
AEEGBTEEPHNEERHERMKEIO
A% ERERN R DT T

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued)
The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging from
cash on delivery to 30 days. Ageing analysis of trade receivables

is as follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 173,667 108,347
31 to 60 days 31£260H 16,100 17,172
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,388 1,489
Over 90 days 90 KA k£ 153 78
191,308 127,086
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are denominated FEM SR BREE A T 5 B AHE
in the following currencies:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
HK dollars BT 55,778 68,333
US dollars 7T 118,090 58,753
Renminbi AREE 17,440 -
191,308 127,086

MEEZERERAE —STAFFR
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20. Amounts due from/to related companies

21.

20. FEW FERIBREASIRIA

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T FHIT
Amount due from: FEUAT A RIFRIE
Other receivables H fth U R IE
Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Limited SHESRETE (BERK)
(“Genesis Ningbo") BRAE ([EEREF]) - 140
Amounts due to: FER AT A RIZRIE
Trade payable JERT &R
Genesis Alloys Limited eFEaeBRAF
("Genesis Alloys"”) (T&M&axl) = 14
Other payable H A e FRIE
Modern Wealth Limited FIRL B R AR 146 -
146 14

During the year ended 31st December 2005 and up to 14th
September 2006, Mr Chan Pak Chung had joint control over
Genesis Ningbo and Genesis Alloys. On 15th September 2006,
the Group acquired 50% interests in Genesis Recycling
Technology (BVI) Limited (“GRTL"), which is the holding
company of both Genesis Alloys and Genesis Ningbo.

Modern Wealth Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group until its entire issued share capital was sold to Mr Chan
Pak Chung in April 2006.

The amounts receivable and payable are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms
of repayment.

Restricted bank balances

The restricted bank balances as at 31st December 2005 were
pledged as security for the banking facilities of the Group. The
security was released in 2006.
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22. Bank balances and cash — unrestricted

23.

The carrying amounts of unrestricted bank balances and cash
are denominated in the following currencies:

22. SRITHBRRRE— TERH

TR H R 8RR OBRE(EIA T 5
WRHE:

Group Company
XEHE XAT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FEX FET
HK dollars BT 85,471 24,580 19,936 =
US dollars ET 636,655 46,364 556,402 =
Others Hit 5,428 51 - =
727,554 70,995 576,338 =
Assets held for sale and liabilities associated 23. BEEHEZEEREHEEHEZE
with assets held for sale ERHENEE

On 31st December 2005, the directors decided to dispose of
the Group’s entire interest in Modern Wealth Limited and Wah
San Diecasting Company Limited, the then wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group to Mr Chan Pak Chung at a
consideration to be determined with reference to the net asset
value of the two subsidiaries. Prior to the disposal, Modern
Wealth Limited held all the investment properties of the Group,
which was not a core business of the Group and certain other
leasehold land and property, plant and equipment of the Group
and Wah San Diecasting Company Limited remained inactive.
The two subsidiaries were disposed of in April 2006 at an
aggregate final consideration of approximately HK$59,488,000,
resulting in a loss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$82,000 (notes 7 and 32(c)). Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of Modern Wealth Limited and Wah San Diecasting
Company Limited are presented as a disposal group held for
sale as at 31st December 2005.

REZEZERF+_A=1+—A EFRETERK
AR LA HEREERFKGRA R RERH
CEBRERARAF (ERMRAR AKH
MEEMBAR) HEHER RENET
LEMRMBRANEEFE- REHALE
Al FIXKBRAF —BEFEARENMERE
W (WIEAEENZOER) URAEEE
TFH TS + 3t R W2 B AR - R
& B IE R A R A A RIS 275 o % M K P B
ARERZTTNFOALE &RANEY
459,488,000/ 7T W B B E B A R &8
#782,000% 7T (M7 &32(c) "Bt HR=F
TRE+ZA=1+—8 FIRKBR DA RER
CBREERERATNEERAEBZI AR
BIEHERNHHERE-
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23. Assets held for sale and liabilities associated 23. BAEHEZEEREBAEHERZE
with assets held for sale (Continued) ERFANAE (&)
The carrying amounts of major classes of assets and liabilities REZZEZRFT-A=+—HOERELE
classified as disposal group held for sale as at 31st December SENEERABNEZEANNEREES T
2005 are analysed as follows: TR
2005
HK$'000
FAET
Assets BE
Investment properties REYE 46,820
Leasehold land HELH 10,681
Property, plant and equipment LEN G G 3,350
Trade and other receivables FEULE TR K H Ath E W kIR 250
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted IRITEHB RIS — TR 340
61,441
Liabilities afE
Trade and other payables FEH & R H M FE A 5RO 507
Tax payable FEBTRIA 47
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFHIEAE 4,112
4,666
An analysis of the results of operations of the disposal group is WHEEENQLEESITINT:
as follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAT
Income WA 691 2,103
Fair value gains on investment properties & EWEH A FERZE 3,800 9,840
Expenses X (58) (517)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 75 B g A1) 4,433 11,426
Income tax expense FriSFif (803) (1,625)
Profit for the year F R A 3,630 9,801
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23. Assets held for sale and liabilities associated 23.

24,

with assets held for sale (Continued)

The net cash flows attributable to the operating and investing
activities of the disposal group are set out below:

BERAMER (&)

BEEHIMT

FAEHEZEERERBEHERE

HHERBENEE RREBHMEHRSR

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAET
Net cash from operating activities K EEFTISHIR SRR 733 1,795
Net cash used in investing activities BRETDFANR S FE = (15)
Share capital 24. IB&E
(a) Authorised and issued capital (a) EEREBHTHRA
Number Approximate
of shares amount
30 E = B
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: VERE
Upon incorporation on RZTTRF+—A+—H
11th November 2005 (note (i) SRR ST (B EEG) 3,800,000 380
At 31st December 2005 and RZZEERF+=-A=1+—H
1st January 2006 =T RF—HA—H 3,800,000 380
Increase in authorised SRTE PR AIE hn (B =E()
share capital (note (ii)) 7,996,200,000 799,620
At 31st December 2006 MR- E+=-A=+—H 8,000,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREARE:
Upon incorporation on RZTTRF+—A+—H
11th November 2005 (note (i) SRR TR (B EEG) 1 =
At 31st December 2005 and RZZEERF+=-A=1+—H
1st January 2006 R_ZETXF—H—H 1 =
Capitalisation of share premium MR TR IR 1 45 (B & A b
upon issue of shares (note (iii)) (=) 599,999,999 60,000
Issue of shares for global PEREE M EITAD (Bl s (iv)
offering (note (iv)) 200,000,000 20,000
Issue of shares on the exercise of PITE B AR M BITAR D
over-allotment option (note (v)) (MFEEW)) 30,000,000 3,000
At 31st December 2006 MR- E+=-HA=+—H 830,000,000 83,000
FMEZERERAT —ZBAEFH
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24. Share capital (Continued)

(@) Authorised and issued capital (Continued)
Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
11th November 2005 with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10
each. On the same date, one share of HK$0.10 was issued
at par.

On 15th September 2006, the Company increased its
authorised share capital from HK$380,000 to
HK$800,000,000 by the creation of an additional
7,996,200,000 shares of HK$0.10 each ranking pari passu
in all respects with the then existing issued shares.

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange, on 13th September 2006, the entire
issued share capital of the Company became wholly owned
by Gold Alliance Global Services Limited (“Gold Alliance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Gold Alliance International
Management Limited, by way of a deed of gift entered
into between Mr Chan Pak Chung and Gold Alliance.

On 15th September 2006, a written resolution was passed
by Gold Alliance, the then sole shareholder of the Company
pursuant to which, 599,999,999 shares of HK$0.10 each
were allotted and issued to Gold Alliance, credited as fully
paid at par, by way of the capitalisation of the sum of
HK$59,999,999.90 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, subject to the share
premium account of the Company being credited by an
amount not less than HK$59,999,999.90 as a result of the
issue of the shares pursuant to the global offering as
detailed in (iv) below.

On 4th October 2006, the Company completed a global
offering of 200,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.10
each at a price of HK$2.67 per share in cash for an
aggregate consideration of HK$534 million. The shares
commenced trading on the Stock Exchange on 4th October
2006. All these shares rank pari passu in all respects with
the then existing shares. The listing proceeds of the
aforementioned shares, net of direct issuance expenses
amounted to approximately HK$503 million. The resulting
share premium amounted to approximately HK$483
million.
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24. BA& (%)
(a) ZEEREBITIRE (B)
GEE
() ARAR-FTRF+—A+—BAR

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MEeERSEMAL AERER
380,000/% 7T 7 %43,800,000 % & %
0.108THIB (D - [A H > —BXE{EO.10
BITEEERT

R-ZEZEANFNA+THRA BBER
7,996,200,000/% F A E{E0. 10T HY
&7 - 1A R BHEE A 380,000
7T E800,000,00058 7T i H 1D
EEFEYEERRAEHTRNE
B RIEHEF-

REHEARDBRN OB Ef R
T RENA+TZH BRBRIATLLE
BGold Alliance International
Management Limited 2& [l EA 7
Gold Alliance Global Services Limited
([Gold Alliance] ) AT fBRE 2R 75
X AR REFEBITRAK ABEGoId
Alliance2 & & °

REZZBZXFAATHERA AQRER
HIME— % SR Gold Alliance 3B E ®ERE
BBt FARENRMDEERRER
BT X (iv) Frilt 2 BREEE BAT A (D T
8RR 1259,999,999.90 T4 - i@IB S
AR B KD EEERD
59,999,999.90F LT EARK A=, [A]
Gold Alliancefd3 kT4 £
599,999,999k AR EI{H0. 10/ ;T A%
EEARI AR RN -

REZBEXRE+AMNB ARARETK
NBEIEETR2. 678 THERDIRE
£200,000,0008% &A% E{E0. 107 7THY
f& 15 #84K(8 A 534,000,000/ 7T ° i 17
R-TTNE+ BB RS
BE FAZSERNES HEHEER
RERNZHREERN -NINRE L
TR % EMRH M EWARKIELN
#£503,000,000/% 7T < B 17 m (B E 5
#7483,000,000% 7T °



24. Share capital (Continued)

(@) Authorised and issued capital (Continued)

(v)  On 20th October 2006, upon the exercise of the over-
allotment option by the placing underwriters under the
underwriting agreements entered into between the
Company and the placing underwriters, 30,000,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.10 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$2.67 per share in cash for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$80 million to the
placing underwriters. The proceeds of the aforementioned
shares, net of direct issuance expenses amounted to
approximately HK$77 million. The resulting share premium
amounted to approximately HK$74 million.

(b) Share option schemes
Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the then
sole shareholder of the Company on 15th September
2006, two share option schemes, namely, Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme were approved
and adopted by the Company.

24. B’F (&)

(a)

(b)

EERCEITRAE (&)

V) RZZEERF+HAZ+H REERH
BIRIBEAR R REE B HEI LN
HipHRITERBERER  ANREIAR
RER2.67BTHERMALEE B H
P e 2% & #7730,000,000 % B A E
0.107 T H AR (7 - 48X {E£780,000,000
I oM EERITRAX % LK
R FT18 R84 A77,000,000/%8 70 2%
15335 (B 3£5114974,000,0007 IT °

Bz E

REBARBERE-BRRNR _TTNF
NATHABBNERRZER FQH
HERKAMRBRESS DHIRE
RN [ 2 6 B RB AR RE At &) e B R AT

&l

MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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24. Share capital (Continued)
(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

0]

104

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

During the year, the Company granted options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to certain
directors of the Company and employees of the
Group, which entitle them to subscribe for a total
of 21,960,180 shares at a subscription price of
HK$2.136 per share and are exercisable in the
following manners:

Maximum percentage of option exercisable
ST REERENSSE St

24. B&&X ()
(b) FERRHE (&)

()  BAAFEEHIEREZ
FRARAREERNAFREER
BREFTEMARRAETEERK
rEEEERLBERE BTERSE
ERIERBESR2. 13678 TRE
& 321,960, 180A% AR 17 + B A% 48 AT
BT HAITRE:

Period for exercise of the relevant
percentage of the option

TR R R B 5 ey

33% of the total number of the options
granted to any grantee

ERAR AR B IRELRHI33%

33% of the total number of the options
granted to any grantee

EAIAR A B33 %

34% of the total number of the options
granted to any grantee

ERAR AR B RELRHI34%

From the expiry of the first anniversary of

the listing date on 4th October 2006 (“Listing
Date”) to the last day of the fourth anniversary
of the Listing Date (both days inclusive)

AR ETHEMA-—ETRFTAMNB (TETmRED)
A EAFEREE LT HBENEFHN
RiE—H(BFEEEMAE)

From the expiry of the second anniversary of
the Listing Date to the last day of the fifth
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days
inclusive)

AR EmRMEHE _AFEREE ET A
FHEAFNEE—RB (BEEEMA)

From the expiry of the third anniversary of the
Listing Date to the last day of the sixth
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days
inclusive)

Al TSR E=AFEREZE LT A
ERAFHNKE—B (BEEEMA)

None of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are exercisable within the first
twelve months after the Listing Date.
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24. Share capital (Continued)
(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme outstanding as at 31st
December 2006 are as follows:

24. B’F (&)
(b) FERRHE (&)
()  BRAFZEEHEREE (F)

R-BEAE+=A=+—AH
RATRERMBIRAERE T

Exercise price

Number of
shares subject
to the options

Date of grant in HK$ per share R ERE

i =E ] EikiTHEHE (BT BRI EE

Directors 15 September 2006 2.136 11,509,740
B —EERFNAATEE

Senior management 15 September 2006 2.136 5,862,570
SREIRRE —EERENAATAHA

Other employees 15 September 2006 2.136 4,587,870
Hiufg 8 —EERENAATAHE

21,960,180

No share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year.

The fair value of options granted during the year
determined using the binomial option pricing model
was approximately HK$31 million. The significant
inputs into the model were share price of HK$2.67
per share as at the grant date, exercise price as
shown above, volatility of the share of 65%,
expected life of options of three years, expected
dividend yield of 4.48% and annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.97%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns
is based on the 5-year historical volatility of price
return of companies engaged in the industry of
metal trading and listed on the Stock Exchange.

Share Option Scheme
No option was granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year.

(i)

6 PO AR 1 B R A BB 65 AR
BB B S AR I T
SBT3

FARLOBREATERA=
HABREEERLEEN A
31,000,000 7T A FTRAM EE
LEARELARESGR2.67%
T AT E IR IRIE65% -
TEEARE AR HEF A3 &£ THHAR S
Bl *4.48% R EFZT R F %
3.97% o TEEAIRE B FRIFAEZ H)K
BRI R Eh RSB
BIEBHARBERFNRE

ORG-S
B KERTE

FABERBEBRESSRHE
BetE

MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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25. Share premium and other reserves

25. BRimEREMEE

Group ARE
Other reserves
AR
Reserve  Share-based
funds  compensation Total
Share Merger (note (b)) reserve Exchange Retained other
premium  reserve ERse  URhRER reserve eamings reserves Total
BfEE  AHER (W) it Exie REEN  RBEGELE ot
HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THL TEL THL TEL TEL THL TEL TEL
At 1st January 2005 R-EER5-A-A - 10,000 - - - 23,341 233841 213384
Profit for the year ERig - - - - - 202,380 202,380 202,380
Dividend decared to the then ~ FI-RKBAZEEH
shareholder of a subsidiary RRERRE
(note 14) (Fsra) - - - - - (85,000 ) (85,000 (85,000)
At 315t December 2005 R-ERRET-A=1-R
and 1st January 2006 RZ%%7E-A-1 - 10,000 - - - 34,2 351,21 351,21
Repurchase of shares of a AHEARERRR
subsidiary from the then BENELA
shareholder of the subsidiay Rl - (10000) - - - - (10,000) (10,000
Issue of shares in connection with £ EE &R
lising (note 24(a)) and (v) (R4 RW) 591,100 - - - - - - 591,100
Share issuance expenses RAEARER
(note 24(a)v) and (v) (EE24(@) () (34,526 ) - - - - - - (34526
Capitalsation of share RipaEEA
premium (note 24(a)i) (Isa4(ain) (60,000 = = - - - - (60,000)
Transfer to resenve funds ERTHERD - - 313 - - (313) = =
Pre-PO Share Option Scheme ~ ERAFEERBRE
- value of employee iE-ERANEE
senvices (note (a) (s - - - 4,748 - - 4,748 4,748
Profit for the year ERE = = = = = 388,563 388,563 388563
Exchange difference EizR = - - - 158 - 158 158
At 315t December 2006 R-FFAETZRAZT-B 496574 - Eit} 4,748 158 1941 134790 1,231,364
Balance after 2006 final TR-FFRERRRY
divdend proposed Rekngs 496,574 - 313 4,148 258 630,452 635,771 1,132,345
2006 final dividend proposed ~ ~FFAEBRFHRE - - - - - 99,019 99,019 99,019
496,574 - Eit} 4,748 158 1941 134790 1,231,364
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25. Share premium and other reserves (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

Share-based compensation reserve represents an entry
corresponding to employee share option expense charged to the
income statement.

25. BRiiERHEbhiEE (&)

B aE

(@) AR AERNHRFEEskER AR
EEMBEERMMER -

(b)  Inaccordance with the regulations of Mainland China, a subsidiary (b)  REBERBEAREERRG] A B ARE A KR
of the jointly controlled entity registered in the Mainland China SR E M E A RIZA S MBS ER
is required to transfer part of its profit after income tax to reserve BN R S R EES ERAR R S
funds. The transfer is also subject to the approval of the board of ERNMBARNESSE  H AR EARK
directors of the jointly controlled entity’s subsidiary, in accordance EIRAMAIETT
with its articles of association.
Company AAT
Other reserves
Hib it
Retained
Share-based earnings/ Total
compensation  (accumulated other
Share Contributed reserve losses) reserves
premium surplus W AR RERA,/  HUEE Total
RiYiE BARR HE MR (RitBH) ot gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR TR T T
At 11th November 2005 RZZEZRFT-A+-A
(date of incorporation) (Galiava=t::) = = = = = =
Loss for the period BRER - = = (14) (14) (14)
At 31st December 2005 and RZFTRETZA=1-H
1st January 2006 R=FE~5-F-R - - - (14) (14) (14)
Effect of Reorganisation Elinp = 640,631 - - 640,631 640,631
Issue of shares in connection with 7 B_E HFTE4TR D
listing (note 24(a)(iv) and (v)) (FitEE24(@) ) R(v) 591,100 - - - - 591,100
Share issuance expenses RiAEIRT
(note 24(a)(iv) and (v)) (3240 R(v) (34,526) - - - - (34,526)
Capitalisation of share RIVREERL
premium (note 24(a)(ii)) (i 24(a)iii) (60,000) - - - - (60,000)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme ~ BRDHREAERE
- value of employee TE—EERBHER
services (note (a)) GEE) - - 4,748 - 4,748 4,748
Profit for the year ERET = = = 99,053 99,053 99,053
At 31st December 2006 R=8%~E+-A=+-B 496574 640,631 4,748 99,039 744,418 1,240,992
Balance after 2006 final IR-FF ERRRY
dividend proposed RE&MLLR 496,574 640,631 4,748 20 645399 1,141,973
2006 final dividend propsed ~ =FFRERRAGRE = - - 99,019 99,019 99,019
496,574 640,631 4,748 99,039 744,418 1,240,992

HERRARAT —TT F5H
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26. Trade and other payables

26. EFERREMESKRIE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables FERTER 77,664 19,131
Deposits received Bz e 35,851 8,005
Accrued expenses FEETHRIA 12,354 9,792
125,869 36,928
Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: JEREFREBRE DT T -
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 74,785 15,825
31 to 60 days 31£60H 1 595
61 to 90 days 61£90H - -
Over 90 days 90H A E 2,878 2,711
77,664 19,131
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in NSRBI N5 S sHE :
the following currencies:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK dollars BT 1,320 1,461
Us dollars E 51,906 17,670
Renminbi AR 24,365 -
Others Hith 73 -
77,664 19,131
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27. Bank borrowings 27. RITHE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#IT FHIT
Loans against trust receipts — secured EREBIEEH—F KT - 110,387
Loans against trust receipts — unsecured fErE IR B R —E IR 268,214 76,520
268,214 186,907

All the bank borrowings at 31st December 2005 were
guaranteed by certain directors of the Company and/or a
director of certain subsidiaries. In addition, the above secured
bank borrowings at 31st December 2005 were secured by
certain investment properties, leasehold land, properties and
bank balances of the Group (notes 15, 16, 17 and 21).

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

R_TBERFE+-_A=+—BMEHRITEE
HBRARAETEER SETHER AN
—BRERER-MIN AR =TT RF+=
A=+—BMERMBITEEARERET
JEYE- BE i Y3 RIRITERERT
(MtE15 - 16~ 17/%21) °

RITEENREEAT I EEE:

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FAT

US dollars ETT 267,911 186,701
Others Hih 303 206
268,214 186,907

MEEZERERAE —STAFFR
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27. Bank borrowings (Continued)

27.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as

follows:

IRITIEE (@)
NEEERNERMNZMT:

2006 2005

Loans against trust receipts

EREBUEE R

5.97% t0 6.86% 1.34% t0 6.14%

The bank borrowings are all subject to contractual interest

repricing dates within six months from the relevant balance

sheet dates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings

approximate their fair values.

28. Deferred income tax

28.

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary

differences under the liability method using a principal income

tax rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%).

The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2RRITEREZENNEEFNNERTARE
BEE BN EARRITIEENRAERER
FEBE

el

I

IREFTRB
EEFSHIABEENGREZBIREBHME
R E175% (ZETRF:17.5%) tE2 HU%
f&e

EETIAR B RZEHMT

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FAT

At 1st January m—A—H 1,554 4,282

Charged to income statement B Yz & kR 342 1,384
Reclassified to liabilities associated BN BEARBEELEY

with assets held for sale (note 23) BEEAMAE (MHE23) - (4,112)

At 31st December R+=-—A=+—H 1,896 1,554
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28. Deferred income tax (Continued)

28.

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year

is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

EEHEAE

EIEFRSBL (&)
BREBHEARE, (BE) RFANEBINT

Deferred tax liabilities

BEHEGR

Accelerated accounting

Accelerated tax

Fair value gains

on investment properties

depreciation depreciation REMEN Total
MEEHE MERERE AFEKE @t
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
THET TEr  FERX TEr  TEx  TEr  FER 0 TEx
At 1st January w—A—H 72 38 (1,626) (2,012) - (2,308) (1,626) (4,320)
Deferred income tax credited/  BWEZRIB/ GTA)
(charged) to income statement  WHEKELAEH 47 34 (389) (224) - (1,194) (389)  (1,418)
Reclassified to liabilities ENHEAR
associated with assets BEELECEE
held for sale BBEREE - - - 610 - 3,502 = 4112
At 31st December W+=R=1t—H 119 72 (2,015)  (1,626) - - (2,015  (1,626)
29. Amount due to a director of subsidiaries 29. FEft—ZMEBATEERE

As at 31st December 2005, the amount due to a director of

subsidiaries was due to Mr Chan Shu Cheoung, who is the
father of Mr Chan Pak Chung. The amount was denominated

in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured and interest free. The amount

as at 31st December 2005 was settled during the year.

30. Investment in a subsidiary and amounts due

from/(to) subsidiaries

30.

R-ZZERF+_A=+—H EN—EHNE
AREEFIR/RARE S KL RBHFEE
MR 2B INETTIE A REIER RS
BRZETRFT_A=+—HHEKREEN
TRERFREE.

R BATMRERER, () BB
BIRIE

Company
AAT
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#IT FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETARD - RPN AN ET 640,631 =
MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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from/(to) subsidiaries (Continued)

All balances with subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31st December 2006:

BIRIA (@)

NCIE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

30. Investment in a subsidiary and amounts due 30. RMBATIMREREW () HEBL

S AR NPT A ESRII R TIE REE
MRS BEEEERS-

TREJ _ZEZRFET_A=+—HNNE

Place of the Company
Company name incorporation Issued capital AATIFME  Principal activities
AT EH Byl ARk ERTESR BR#EESE TEEH
Lee City Asia Company Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100%  Property holding
Limited o HK$1 each MERE
RSN AR A A 10,000/ &R EI(E
1A TTERRD
Lee Fung Metal Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100%  Trading of
Company Limited Bt HK$1 each non-ferrous metal
MEReBERNA 100,000/ i E1E BEEFEER
1A TTERRD
Lee Fung Metal British Virgin 2 shares of 100%  Investment holding
Company (BVI) Limited Islands HK$1 each REZER
RERELES 2R EREEATHRG
Lee Kee Group Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
FREEER DA 5 HK$1 each REER
1,000 B HEE
1ETHRN
Lee Kee Group (BVI) British Virgin 2 shares of 100%  Investment holding
Limited? Islands HK$1 each REER
EBRLHE 2B IREEETHRD
Lee Kee Metal Company Hong Kong 500,000 shares of 100%  Trading of zinc alloy
Limited 5 HK$10 each and zinc
MEhE&BRAA 500,000 Z AR HE (B BEEHAE R
108 TR AR
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30. Investment in a subsidiary and amounts due 30.

from/(to) subsidiaries (Continued)

Company name

Place of
incorporation

EENCRE))

Issued capital

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

FAFFHG

RBASMREREW (1) HEL

Principal activities

A5 &H M IR ERTEAX BETSE  EEEH
Lee Kee Metal Company British Virgin 2 shares of 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands HK$1 each HEER
RERETES 2R EREE 1B THRG
Lee Sing Materials Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100%  Trading of chemical
Company Limited B8 HK$1 each products
MAELEBRAA 100,000 B E (& BEE(2Em
1A THRN
Lee Sing Materials British Virgin 2 shares of 100%  Investment holding
Company (BVI) Limited Islands HK$1 each REZER
RBRZES 2REREEIE RN
Lee Tai Precious Metal Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100%  Trading of precious
Company Limited % HK$1 each metals chemicals
FIR(E2B) BRAR 10,0008 B EE BEREESBILTRY
1B TTERD
Lee Tai Precious Metal British Virgin 2 shares of HK$1 each 100%  Investment holding
Company (BVI) Limited Islands 2R EFREENE TR, BEER
RBRUHS
Standard Glory Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100%  Provision of
Management Limited Bt HK$1 each management services
EREEARAF 10,000 SR E1E RUER R
1A THRN
Success City Asia Company Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% Inactive
Limited i HK$1 each Emxi
B EMAER AT 10,000/ Z X EIE
1A THRN
Success In Asia Company Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% Inactive
Limited i HK$1 each EEx
RETMERAR 10,0008 B E{E
1A THRN

MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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30. Investment in a subsidiary and amounts due 30. RMBATIMBREREW () B
from/(to) subsidiaries (Continued) BIRIE (&)

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Place of the Company
Company name incorporation Issued capital AATFME  Principal activities
AT &H 30 sk ERTES BREESE  EEEH
Toba Company Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100%  Property holding

o of HK$1 each MERE

10,0008% ZAXEE
1B TTHRD
Toba Company (BVI) Limited  British Virgin 2 shares of HK$1 each 100%  Investment holding
Islands 2R EREEETHRG REER

EBRAHE

#:  Directly held by the Company t o RAREERB
31. Investment in a jointly controlled entity 31. RIEREHEENRE

The Group has a 50% interest in a jointly controlled entity, ARERARZH EBGRTLERS0% Bk
GRTL. GRTL together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, GRILERHXZEWBARI & MAE T REKS
Genesis Alloys and Genesis Ningbo (collectively referred to as Rl (#7875 [ Genesis Group] ) £ Bl ABEHE =
the “Genesis Group”) are engaged in the manufacturing and REREHASEMRES - AT RARZHE
trading of alloy products in the Mainland China. The following BR-FTRF+T A=+ ANFE:

are the particulars of the jointly controlled entity at 31st
December 2006:

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Place of the Company
Company name incorporation Issued capital AATIFME  Principal activities
AT &8 FEA R L B, ERFTEX BHEESE EEEH
Genesis Recycling British Virgin 2,100,000 shares of 50% Investment holding
Technology (BVI) Islands US$1 each B R
Limited RBRLHS 2,100,000/ B R EE
R (EBERRAES) 13X TR 7

BRAR]
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31.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity

(Continued)

The following amounts represent the Group’s 50% share of
the consolidated assets and liabilities of Genesis Group as at
31st December 2006, and consolidated revenue and results of
Genesis Group for the period from the date of acquisition of
GRTL to 31st December 2006. They are included in the
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income statement

of the Group:

31.

REREFERENRE (@)

T3 & BEENRAREEFE50%HGenesis
GroupRZ=ZZEERNF+ZA=+—HHEZE
BERBE URBEKEGRTLESRTZZ
TEXRFT_A=+—HILHEGenesis
GroupHfr e as REE - A EBRBE AR
SESREEEABRREE ER:

2006

HK$'000

Fi#T

Leasehold land HELH 501
Property, plant and equipment LEN NG ] 3,319
Inventories T8 13,279
Trade and other receivables PR S R R A FE UL R IR 23,337
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITEB RIS —TERH 8,444
Trade and other payables B ER R H A B FRIE (33,114)
Tax payable FESTHIA (360)

Amount due to a related company, EREERRFIKERAF
Modern Wealth Limited KB (146)
Amount due to a joint venturer of FER RSB RS S E R

a jointly controlled entity B FRIE (274)
14,986
Amount due to the Group B AR EFIE (1,836)
Net assets BEFE 13,150
Revenue W zs 83,331
Cost of sales SHE KA (78,535)
Gross profit E A 4,796
Other income =N 17
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRAHER X (239)
Administrative expenses THAX (890)
Profit before income tax ?Dﬁa’—ﬁfr S BE A 3,684
Income tax expense FTSRi > (574)
Profit after income tax MBRFAE B =T 3,110

The amount due to a joint venturer of a jointly controlled entity

is denominated in US dollars, unsecured, interest free and has

no fixed terms of repayment.

e HRZEHEES %*%ﬁﬁ’]fk ELA%E’E\J
B AEEHReE BERETE

HERRARAT —TT F5H
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32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

32. FARERERME

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) IRRFTEBARFEZERSNHIREF
generated from operations BEHIIER
2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFH#T FHET
Profit before income tax HBR PG BRI F 470,994 244,540
Fair value gains on investment REMEN AT EMN S
properties (3,800) (9,840)
Depreciation e 3,129 1,939
Amortisation of leasehold land HE TS 128 381
Interest income S A (16,278) (558)
Interest expense FBFX 11,707 7,906
Gain on disposal of property, plant LEWE BE REE
and equipment & (266) (204)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEMBARMNER 82 -
Impairment provision for RERERE
doubtful debts 2,062 -
Excess of the Group’s interest in REBRERZEHIE R
the net fair value of the identifiable AIERIEEFED
net assets of the jointly controlled NEFERAEER
entity over cost of acquisition B A AR DD (1,084) -
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme —value B X /2B 3 & AT B AL AE
of employee services stEl—(E B REMER 4,748 =
Operating cash inflow before Rt EESEBAIN
working capital changes BERSWA 471,422 244,164
Increase in inventories FEEM (399,598) (76,040)
Increase in trade and other receivables  JEUE F1 & H ftb UK FRIEE N (48,109) (36,853)
Increase in trade and other payables JE A& ik e L i < SR IB IS AN 70,779 2,133
Movement in balances with related BE DR
companies 223 (6,036)
Movement in balance with a joint HRAZEGIEENE LB
venturer of a jointly controlled entity & #k% (124) -
Repayment of amount due to BERFHIERESR
a director by a jointly controlled B —REEH
entity IR (839) -
Net cash generated from operations EEMEHNELFE 93,754 127,368
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32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

32. FEBRERERME (@

(Continued)
(b) Acquisition of 50% interest in a jointly controlled (b) kS FEHIEE50% R
entity
At the date
of acquisition
RugEa
HK$'000
FHET
Leasehold land HE+TH 985
Property, plant and equipment LE NN 6,674
Inventories FE 16,403
Trade and other receivables JE B R e L Ath FE W R IE 20,915
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITRB RIS — TR 12,771
Trade and other payables FERTE R R H M FE S 5RIE (32,730)
Tax payable FESIFRIE (195)
Amount due to a related company, Modern FETRRE R RIFIKBRAR]
Wealth Limited IR (97)
Amount due to a director of a jointly ERNHREHEE —RES (1,677)
controlled entity IR
Amount due to the Group ERAEERIEA (1,916)
Amount due to a joint venturer of a jointly BRI ERE SR
controlled entity B ERIE (2.712)
Net assets BEFE 18,421
Net assets acquired (50%) W iE & B FE(50%) 9,210
Cash consideration for acquisition (Note) R Y EERE (3 (8,126)
Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value AN SR B A 2k R Il 2 AE 0] 34 B
of the identifiable net assets of the jointly BEFENATEFER AL
controlled entity over cost of acquisition (note 7) RETR BN B R AR L &R 10 (B E7) 1,084
An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and ERUELRAEHERNRES K
cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of ReFEHEB RHFRED
a jointly controlled entity is as follows: DT
Cash consideration ReRE (8,126)
Bank balances and cash acquired BWERITERRIAS 6,386
(1,740)
Note: B -

Total cash consideration of approximately HK$8,126,000 includes
the consideration of 50% interest in a jointly controlled entity of
approximately HK$7,593,000 (note 35(a)(ix)) and advanced
contribution by the Group to the jointly controlled entity of
approximately HK$533,000.

&R E48,126,0007%8 7T &2 3E 7 FL R 12 I
E850% 5 P T YR E4)7,593,000/ 7T
(B aE35(a)ix) R A5 B S R 6 E A8 IR AT
& 49533,0007 7T

MNRBEREBRAT —ZTAEER
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32. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
(Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

32. GERERERME (@)

(0 HEMBAT

As at date
of disposal
RHEBH
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Investment properties KA 50,620
Leasehold land HE+TH 10,596
Property, plant and equipment LIEN NG ] 3,317
Trade and other receivables JE LU R R L Ah P W SR IE 153
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted IRITHRHB RIS — TER A 351
Trade and other payables FERT B R R H M FE T R (507)
Tax payable FEETIA (147)
Deferred tax liabilities REFBBERE (4,813)
59,570
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (notes 7 and 23) HEKHBARMEE (H:E7%23) (82)
Sale consideration HERE 59,488
Satisfied by set off of dividend payable LA S8 PR AT AR B 75 BT 59,488
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and ERHERBARNRE R
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal ReLEBAH ML FHE
of subsidiaries is as follows: BT T :
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERITEBRRIE S (351)

33. Contingent liabilities

At 31st December 2006, the Company had contingent liabilities
in respect of corporate guarantees for credit facilities for certain
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$680 million (2005:
Nil), of which approximately HK$268 million (2005: Nil) was

utilised.
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33. HAAR

RZEERNF+_A=1+—H8 K2RREET
MEAREEREEFELAREREBON
KRB E##680,000,0008 L (ZZTTRHF:
=) HA#49268,000,00087C (ZETHF:

) ERPA-



34. Commitments — Group

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments - as a lessee (a)
The Group’s future aggregate minimum rental expense

in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable

operating leases is payable as follows:

34. RiE-AKE

EEHERE - (EREREA
REERBENAIHESERSE Lt
RIEFRITPER R IEHE &R BFEN
T

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 2,044 3,352
In the second to fifth years inclusive SE=—ZFHF (BEEREMF) - 2,652
2,044 6,004

As at 31st December 2006, an amount of approximately
HK$737,000 related to an operating lease commitment
with Modern Wealth Limited.

Operating lease commitments - as a lessor (b)
Prior to the disposal of Modern Wealth Limited, the Group

leased out properties under operating leases, which

generally ran for an initial period of two to five years,

with an option to renew the lease after that date at which

time all terms would be renegotiated.

The Group's total future minimum rental income under
non-cancellable operating leases was receivable as follows:

RZEERETZRAR=+T—8B'%
737,000 TR £ BREFIK B R R AET
UK EHEAERR-

EEHERE-FRHAA
RIEEFMRER AR ZAT NEERE
REHEHEYE HREN—RAM
FERF TAEEEEHESERRE
- ERNMARERREAIENHE-

AR ERIB AN R BUH A A T E R R E
MR RS WALERINT :

2006 2005

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Within one year —FR - 2,013
In the second to fifth years inclusive F-_EFAF (BIEEEREF) - 716
- 2,729

All the amounts receivable as at 31st December 2005 were
for investment properties included in assets held for sale.

AR -ZZERF T -A=+—HRER
MFEBRAFERHEZEENRE
EL

FEREZERBRAT —ZTAFFH
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34. Commitments — Group (Continued)

(c) Capital commitments

34

The Group's capital expenditure at the balance sheet date

. Ri-A%E
() BEX*EIE

REEREERAREENEREEN

but not yet incurred is as follows: T
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Leasehold land and property, plant ~ HE L E¥E K&
and equipment B
Contracted but not provided for BEETABREE 20,423 -
35. Related party transactions 35. AEARS

(@) Transactions with related parties

Other than as disclosed in notes 23 and 24, other

(a) HFEFETRSD
BRETEE23 R24FTHRERE SN F N FTHETT

significant related party transactions carried out during WERFERZHIAT:
the year are as follows:
2006 2005
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEs3 FHET FHTT
Income U ON
Rental received from Lee Yip BEFERASER (i) - 106
Metal Company Limited NAWEE
Management fee received from BERATARNERE
Lee Yip Metal Company Limited FMERSBERAA (i) - 120
Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Limited* SRESRETE
(ZR) BRAAE> (ii) 130 156
Commission income received from BEleFEaeBRAR
Genesis Alloys Limited* A B U A* (iii) - 20
Sales of metal to a director M—REEHESE (iv) 10,290 -
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35. Related party transactions (Continued)
(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

35. FAERRS (&)
() EREIEFHETRS (&)

2006 2005
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=g TFHET FHETT
Expense Fix
Purchase of goods from Genesis mefaeaRAR
Alloys Limited BAEM (v) = 4,537
Rental paid to directors BERESEZNOES (vi) - 220
Rental paid to Regal China ERFZEEEERAA
Properties Limited XATEEE (vii) 9 120
Rental paid to Lee Kee Far East ERFERRREERAR
Company Limited YA E (vii) 720 360
Rental paid to Modern Wealth ERIFIK AR AR
Limited* SAEHEE (viii) 536 -
Others Hth
Acquisition of 50% interest in MF = ZER AR A A
GRTL from Metallic Scope (IMetallic Scope)
Holding Company Limited U B GRTL 50%#E s
("Metallic Scope”) (ix) 9,348 -
*: These transactions continue after the listing of the * AERSNARNR EHIEERET
Company.
() The Group received rental from Lee Yip Metal Company () AEERREFTHENETSERAZFE

(iii)

(iv)

Limited, in which Mr Chan Pak Chung had significant
influence before 24 May 2005 and had controlling interests
thereafter, at a fixed sum as agreed by both parties.

The Group received management fees from Lee Yip Metal
Company Limited and Genesis Alloys (Ningbo) Limited
pursuant to the terms of management services agreements
entered into with these related companies for the provision
of operating support services at fixed monthly service fees.

The Group received commission income from Genesis Alloys
Limited calculated at a fixed rate as agreed by both parties
for the relevant unit of products sold by Genesis Alloys
Limited.

The Group sold gold to Mr Chan Pak Chung at the
prevailing market value on the date of the transaction.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FeARAR (REFEER-_ZTA
FRA-THEMHLEEARE D
KR % BB EA S WEUE

Go

AEERNXAEERARREMNA
SEGET R (B BRAFKEERE
B ZFEADAREREEZEME
R RIRTSZ BN E IR IR 190k B0 6K - R AR
SEMMEHENEEXEREEENE
ERRTS A& -

AEERESHNESERATUBRME
WA X B WA THIRE TS 7 2 [B 7 1R
BXLHRENASAERAREL AR
EmMERFE-

AEERZ 5 E BNRITHEMBKRA
PRAHEES-

HERRARAT —TT F5H
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35. Related party transactions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
(v)  The Group purchased goods from Genesis Alloys Limited
at prices as agreed by both parties for each transaction.

(vi)  The Group paid rental for staff quarters of which Mr Chan
Pak Chung and Ms Ma Siu Tao are owners at fixed sums as
agreed by the parties involved.

(vii)  The Group paid rental for staff and directors’ quarters to
Regal China Properties Limited and Lee Kee Far East
Company Limited, of which Mr Chan Pak Chung and Ms
Ma Siu Tao are directors, at fixed sums as agreed by both
parties.

(viii) The Group paid rental for warehouse and car parking spaces
to Modern Wealth Limited of which Mr Chan Pak Chung
is a director, at fixed sums as agreed by both parties.

(ix)  The Group acquired 1,050,000 ordinary shares of US$1.00
each of GRTL, which represents 50% of its issued share
capital together with a loan due to Metallic Scope of
approximately HK$1,755,000, from Metallic Scope, a
company wholly owned by Mr Chan Pak Chung for cash
consideration of approximately HK$7,593,000 (note 32(b))
and HK$1,755,000 respectively.

Call option deed to acquire Lee Yip Metal Products
Company Limited

On 15th September 2006, the Company entered into a
call option deed with Mr Chan Pak Chung whereby the
Company has a right to acquire up to all equity interest
held by Mr Chan Pak Chung at the time of exercise of the
call option in Lee Yip Metal Products Company Limited, a
company engaged in stainless steel processing business
at a price to be determined based on the higher of the
original investment costs of Mr Chan Pak Chung plus
interest at no more than 1.25% above HIBOR accruing
from the period commencing on the respective dates of
payment of such investment or the net asset value of
shares in Lee Yip Metal Products Company Limited and
all indebtedness owed by Lee Yip Metal Products
Company Limited to Mr Chan Pak Chung within one year
from the date of the listing of the Company on 4th
October 2006. The Company has not yet exercised the
call option.
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35. BEARS (@)

(a)

(b)

HEEHETRXS (&)
v AEEREFEESARATBEER
I EBRDETIREERSHE-

(v) AEBEERBEIBERNZZIESNE
BARBHEERBER LTS
T EREEASE

(vi) AEECHRETIREREEAMNEE
EARABRAERARAF (BRIA
REERSIMLEIREES) 8
T EREEASE

(vii) AEECREBEREEMLRFKER
AR (REFEEREES) N8
P E M E RS

(ix)  AZEEEMetallic Scope (AFR{AF %+
2EBEEAENAR) WHERGRTLE
1,050,000/% FAXE(E 1.00F T8 E iR
B EEBETRAS0%  ERAXEA
Metallic ScopeB)E 411,755,000/
T HREREHRIAA7,593,0008 7T
(Mi5E32(b)) & 1,755,000 7T °

WEEFIE & BHRA SRR IR IR

RZZBERFNATHEAB RRRHERKR
BHREET L RBEERZE Bt A2
AEERAAB LB =TT F+
AmBE—FR WEXZARITER
MEHIERS PR AR R A FTHRF E OF S € B
BERAR (—RUESTHEMMITEKH
NA) N2 AR E BRRATHRS
& FRIAP SR EMRIEERK A BN
ZERENEE B BT HEANIAEE
SBITRIZEREM 25EFE 5 F %
CBERAFABRG N EEFERF
X¥¢BAERDARARAFEENHDH
&7 - A B MR AT RRR B



35. Related party transactions (Continued)

36.

(c)

(d)

(e)

35. BEARS (&)

Personal guarantee given by Mr Chan Pak Chung () BREPEEEHBBEANER
Banking facilities of HK$15,000,000 were granted to a HEZEHEBH KB QA B
subsidiary of the jointly controlled entity which were 15,000,000 THRITEE I =T
guaranteed by a personal guarantee of HK$15,000,000 VYR PR A St A H 15,000,000
given by Mr Chan Pak Chung since 2004. The guarantee THEAER-BBAERER _ZTTX
was released on 22nd December 2006. F+_AZ+ =Bk
Key management compensation (d) BREEASHS
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET FHETT
Salaries and other short term e RHE 8 A
employee benefits EERH 14,694 9,378
Post employment benefits — pension  BREF] —EAKE 151 151
Share-based payment VARR 17 3 1~ 5738 3,756 -
18,601 9,529
Balances with related parties (e) FAEHLZL
Other than as disclosed in notes 20 and 29, the Group BB 20 R29FTHR BB E SN AN EEE M E
had no material balances with related parties. BE W EE R

Ultimate and immediate holding companies
The directors regard Gold Alliance International and Gold

Alliance, companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,

as being the ultimate and immediate holding companies of

the Group, respectively.

36. RRRERERAT
EEHRGold Alliance International % Gold
Alliance IREBELZHETME IR
7)) ARIARKEEN &R REEER AR

MRERABRAR —ZTAFER
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